
Agenda subject to change prior to meeting 
 

- Discussio 
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR and CITY COUNCIL  

December 12, 2024 
6:00 PM 

Council Chambers 
1 Auburn Way 

Auburn, GA 30011 
 
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Citizen Comments on Agenda Items 

 
1. Consent Agenda 

a. Council Business Meeting Minutes- November 14, 2024 
b. Council Workshop Meeting Minutes- November 21, 2024 
c. City Event and Holidays for 2025 
d. Metro Water District- Water Efficiency Code Requirements  
e. Garage Enclosure Ordinance 
f. Task Order 39 Extending the Engineer Services for raw water storage pond. 
g. Task Order 40 for Engineering Design Services for the raw water from Rock Creek and the raw 

water storage pond. 
 
VOTING ITEMS  
 

2. LRA Seventh Street- Iris Akridge 
3. Saddle Creek Court Project Contract- Iris Akridge 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



Page 1 of 5  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

MEETING IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
November 14, 2025 

6:00 PM 
Council Chambers 

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
 Present: Mayor:                      Richard Roquemore  
 Council Member:                   Robert L. Vogel III 

Council Member:                   Taylor J. Sisk  
Council Member:                   Jamie L. Bradley  
Council Member:                   Joshua Rowan 
 
City Staff in Attendance: Chief Hodge, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney, Iris Akridge 
 
Also in Attendance: Sarah McQuade, Jack Wilson 

Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
Pastor Rob Ballard gave the invocation. 
Mayor Roquemore gave the pledge. 
 
 
Council Reports and Announcements 
Mayor Roquemore asked for Council Reports and Announcements. Council Member Josh 
Rowan asked Iris Akridge to present the current water report and have 120 Water System 
removed from the agenda due to no lead in water.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing regarding the Auburn-Barrow County 
2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to open the public hearing. 
Second by Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 

Item 1: Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate 
Mayor Roquemore presented the staff report. 
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in favor of the change of 
Amendment. No comments were made. 



Page 2 of 5  

Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in opposition to the change of 
Amendment. No comments were made. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Bradley to close the public hearing. 
Second: by Council Member Vogel 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing regarding the Auburn-Gwinnett County 
2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to open the public hearing. 
Second by Council Member Rowan 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 

Item 1: Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate 
Mayor Roquemore presented the staff report. 
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in favor of the change of 
Amendment. No comments were made. 
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in opposition to the change of 
Amendment. No comments were made. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan to close the public hearing. 
Second: by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing regarding the Downtown Overlay District 
Zoning Amendment Section 17.91 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to open the public hearing. 
Second by Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 

Item 2: Downtown Overlay District Zoning Amendment Section 17.91 
Sarah McQuade presented the staff report. 
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in favor of the change of 
Amendment. No comments were made. 
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in opposition to the change of 
Amendment. No comments were made. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to close the public hearing. 
Second: by Council Member Rowan 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 



Page 3 of 5  

 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Citizen Comments on Agenda Items 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any citizen comments for items on tonight’s agenda. There were none.  
 
Mayor Roquemore asked if there were any items to be removed from the consent agenda.  
Council Member Rowan asked for Item 3C Harmony Grove Cemetery and Item 3f 120 Water System to be removed 

from the Consent agenda.   
 
Item 3: Consent Agenda 
             a. Council Business Meeting Minutes- October 10, 2024  
             b. Council Workshop Meeting Minutes- October 24, 2024  
             c. Harmony Grove Cemetery, Moved to January 2025 
             d. Water Treatment Plant Contract  
             e. City of Auburn Indemnity Ordinance   
             f. 120 Waters System  
             g. LRA College Street  
             h. Bid for Saddle Creek  
             i. Liquidate Police Vehicles 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the remainder of the consent agenda.  
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to table consideration until the next meeting. 
Second: by Council Member Rowan 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any Citizen Comments. 
 
Jill Dill, 126 Lyle Rd, Auburn, GA 30011, Spoke about Harmony Grove Cemetery. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan to adjourn. 
Second: By Council Member Bradley. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. Meeting adjourned. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Read and approved this __________ Day of December 2024 
  
Attest: 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Mayor Richard E. Roquemore



MAYOR                                                          CITY COUNCIL 
Rick E. Roquemore                               Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR                             Jamie l. Bradley 
Michael Parks                                                  Joshua Rowan 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 
November 21, 2024 

6:00 PM 
Council Chambers  

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
             Present: Mayor:  Richard Roquemore  
               Council Member:  Robert L. Vogel. III  
               Council Member: Taylor J. Sisk  
                          Council Member: Jamie L. Bradley 
                          Member Absent: Joshua Rowan 

 
City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Chief Hodge, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney, Iris Akridge 
Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson 
 
Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
Item 1: Council Reports and Announcements 
Mayor Roquemore asked for Council Reports and Announcements. There was none. 
 
Item 2: PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Roquemore explained that there will be two public hearings for Auburn- Barrow County 
2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate and Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate.  
 
Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing for the Auburn-Barrow 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to open the Public Hearing for the Auburn-Barrow 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. 
Second: By Council Member Vogel 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 



 
Staff Report- Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate 
Michael Parks presented  
 
Mayor Roquemore announced that we would open the hearing to comments allowing 10 
minutes for people to speak in favor of the 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate and Auburn-Barrow 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. There were none. 
 
Mayor Roquemore announced that we would open the hearing to comments allowing 10 
minutes for people to speak in opposition to the 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate and Auburn-
Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. There were none. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to close the hearing for the Auburn-Barrow County 2024 
Property Tax/Milage Rate.  
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel to close the Public Hearing for the Auburn-Barrow 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. 
Second: By Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing for the Auburn-Gwinnett 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to open the Public Hearing for the Auburn-Gwinnett 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. 
Second: By Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Staff Report- Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate 
Michael Parks presented  
 
Mayor Roquemore announced that we would open the hearing to comments allowing 10 
minutes for people to speak in favor of the 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate and Auburn-Gwinnett 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. There were none. 
 
Mayor Roquemore announced that we would open the hearing to comments allowing 10 
minutes for people to speak in opposition to the 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate and Auburn-
Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. There were none. 



 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to close the hearing for the Auburn-Gwinnett County 
2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate.  
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel to close the Public Hearing for the Auburn-Gwinnett 
County 2024 Property Tax/Milage Rate. 
Second: By Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to move agenda item 10 to item 3.   
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to move agenda item 10 to item 3. 
Second: Made by Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
WORKSHOP ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
Item 3: Council Meeting Video Recording for Discussion Only 
Michael Parks Presented Mason Orr presented regarding the video recording services he 
provides to Barrow County and the Barrow County Board of Education and the costs of those 
services.  
Item 4: City Event and Holidays for 2025 
Michael Parks Presented 
-placed on December 12, 2024, Council Business Agenda 
Item 5: Metro Water District- Water Efficiency Code Requirements 
Jim Aton and Iris Akridge Presented 
-placed on December 12, 2024, Council Business Agenda 
Item 6: Amend City of Auburn Charter Section 5.13 
Jack Wilson presented 
-Placed on December 19th workshop for further discussion.  
Item 7: Board Appointees Code of Conduct 
Jack Wilson presented  
-Placed on December 19th workshop for further discussion.  
Item 8: Garage Enclosure Ordinance 
Chief Hodge Presented 
-placed on December 12, 2024, Council Business Agenda 
Item 9: Task Order 39 Extending the Engineer Services for Raw Water Storage Pond 
Jim Alton presented 
-placed on December 12, 2024, Council Business Agenda 
Item 10: Task Order 40 for Engineering Design Services for the Raw Water from Rock 
Creek and the Raw Water Storage Pond 



Jim Alton presented 
-placed on December 12, 2024, Council Business Agenda 
 
VOTING ITEMS 
Item 11: Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate 
Michael Parks Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property 
Tax/Millage Rate as presented by staff. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel to approve the Auburn/Barrow County 2024 Property 
Tax. Millage Rate. 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken 
with all members present voting yes excluding Council Member Rowan, he was 
absent during the vote. 

Item 12: Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate 
Michael Parks Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property 
Tax/Millage Rate as presented by staff. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel to approve the Auburn/Gwinnett County 2024 
Property Tax. Millage Rate. 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken 
with all members present voting yes. 

Item 13: Auburn Downtown Overlay District Zoning Amendment Section 
17.9-1. 
Sarah McQuade Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Auburn Downtown District 
Zoning Amendment Section 17.9-1. 
Motion: Made By Council Member Sisk to approve the Auburn Downtown 
District Zoning Amendment Section 17.9-1. 
Second: Made by Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken 
with all members present voting yes. 

Mayor Roquemore asked if there were any citizen comments.  
 
Bel Outwater, 305 Bradford Ct., Auburn, GA 30011 
Spoke regarding Amend City of Auburn Charter Section 5.13 
 
Rob Yoe, 1531 Wynfield Dr, Auburn, Ga 30011 



Spoke regarding Board Appointees Code of Conduct 
 
David Kelly, 316 Wyngate Rd, Auburn, GA 30011 
Spoke regarding Board Appointees Code of Conduct and Amend City of Auburn Charter Section 
5.13 
 
Silvia Barber, 1220 St. Andrews Dr, Auburn, Ga 30011 
Spoke regarding Council Meeting Video Recording and Board Appointees Code of Conduct 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Read and approved this  Day of December 2024 Attest: 
 
 

 
  Mayor Richard E. Roquemore 
 



AGENDA ITEM: C 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Michael Parks 
City Administrator 

DATE: November 21, 2024 

PURPOSE:  To review the City’s 2024 Holiday and Event Schedule 

BACKGROUND: The following days will be granted all regular employees as holidays with 
full pay and to approve the 2025 Events Schedule. 

New Year's Day Wednesday, January 1 
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday Monday, January 20 
Washington's Birthday February 17 (Observed on Friday, December 26) 

State Holiday (Observed on Good Friday, April 18) 
Memorial Day Monday, May 26 
Juneteenth National Independence Day Thursday, June 19 

Independence Day Friday, July 4 
Labor Day Monday, September 1 
Columbus Day Monday, October 13 
Veterans Day Tuesday, November 11 
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 27 
State Holiday (Observed on Friday, November 28) 
Christmas Day Thursday, December 25 

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



 

2025 Events 

Major Events: 

• May 3rd  11:00-2:00 pm  Auburn Ever After 
• June 28th   5:00-9:00 pm   Independence Day 
• October 25th  11:00-4:00 pm  Auburn Fest 
• December 6th   3:00-7:00 pm   Sounding Off 

Christmas 
Music/Food Truck: 

• May 9 
• June 13 
• September 12 
• October 10 

Community Yard Sale- Burel Park from 8am-12pm 

• March 29th 
• August 9th 

Farmers Market 4-7pm  

• Tuesdays May 6 – September 16 
Downtown Car Show 10:00-2:00pm 

• 4th Saturday of Feb. March, April, May, July, August, Sept, Nov. and June 21, 
October 18 

Easter Egg Hunt 

• April 12th 
Trick or Treat 

• October 28 from 6:00pm-7:30pm 
Jeep Fest 5-9 pm 

• July 19th  
5K Run 

• March 1st 
Gathering 

• October 4th 



Auburn Clean-up 

• April 18-19 
• October 17-18 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To approve the 2025 Holiday schedule with full pay and the 2025 
Events Schedule as presented by staff. 
 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
 
 



D



















- An Equal Opportunity Employer -

Agenda Item No. E 

To:  Mayor and Council 
From:  Chief Chris Hodge 
Date:  November 21, 2024 

Purpose 
Consider approving changes to City of Auburn Ordinance 15.14.030 pertaining to garage enclosures 

Background 
Over recent weeks, the City of Auburn Code Enforcement Officer has received several calls from 
residents desiring to enclose attached garages for elderly family members.  With the rising costs 
associated with housing, allowing residents to enclose garages for additional living space, if done 
through proper permitting channels, would be of great benefit to Auburn residents.  Enclosing 
garages in residential areas can be justified on several grounds related to practicality, aesthetics, 
security, and property value.  Enclosed garages, when designed to match the home’s architecture, 
can enhance the overall look of the property and create a more cohesive residential aesthetic in 
addition to usable living spaces.  It’s a practical choice for homeowners looking to maximize the 
usability and attractiveness of their property while providing additional living space in a time where 
housing is unaffordable to the most vulnerable in our community. 

Funding 
No funding necessary 

Recommendation 
Approve proposed changes to City of Auburn Ordinance 15.14.030 

Attachments 
1. Proposed changes to City of Auburn Ordinance 15.14.030



 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   24-019  
 

TO AMEND THE CITY OF AUBURN  
CODE OF ORDINANCES  

SECTION 15.34.030 CLOSING GARAGES PERMITTED 
 

 WHEREAS the City has adopted certain construction standards and regulations for garages on 
residential properties within the City limits; and  
 
 WHEREAS certain citizens have expressed concern about the current prohibition on enclosing 
existing garages to improve the value of their property and make affordable living space; and  
 
 WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City to 
permit City residents the most use of their private property;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE the Council of the City of Auburn hereby ordains that Section 15.34.30 of 
the City Code of Ordinances is hereby deleted and the following is substituted in its place:   
 
 15.34.040  CLOSING GARAGES PERMITTED 
 
 The owner of a single-family home in areas zoned R-100 or AG may enclose an existing 
 residential attached garage to convert to living space, with proper permitting and structure. This 
 shall only be allowed in homes in areas zoned R-100 or AG, with existing attached garage, of one 
 or two car capacity. Under no circumstances shall garage enclosure be permitted in PUD, PSV, or 
 CCD districts.  In no case shall a garage be enclosed where the driveway length is less than 20 
 (twenty) feet from the sidewalk or road frontage to edge of the home. No one shall enclose or alter 
 an existing attached garage without first obtaining proper permitting, to include but not limited to 
 site inspection and environmental health inspection and construction inspection. No plumbing 
 facilities may be installed in the process of the garage enclosure. The garage enclosure must be  
 constructed to match other portions of the home, exterior and interior. The garage enclosure must 
 include in the construction, windows, and siding to match the remaining exterior of the home. The 
 garage enclosure must have the minimum insulation and wiring to conform with the standards set 
 forth in the International Residential Building Code in place at the time of issuance of the permit. 
 The garage enclosure shall have access by doorway(s) to the main dwelling and may not be used 
 for short-term or long-term rental purposes. The garage enclosure must have proper egress to 
 conform with fire safety standards. 
 

Conflict 
 
 All ordinances or parts of ordinances which conflict with this ordinance and the applicable code are 

hereby repealed.  
  



 
Effective Date 
 
 This ordinance and the authority granted by and through it shall become effective immediately upon 

its adoption by the Mayor and Council of the City of Auburn, Georgia. 
 
Severability 
 

If any portion of this ordinance is determined to be unconstitutional or invalid, the rest and remainder 
of the ordinance shall remain in full force and effect, as if enacted without the portion declared 
unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
 
 
 SO ORDAINED this _____ day of December, 2024. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Mayor Richard E. Roquemore   Robert L. Vogel, III Council Member 
 
 
_______________________________   
Taylor J. Sisk, Council Member   Jamie L. Bradley, Council Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Joshua Rowan, Council Member 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
    Brooke Haney City Clerk 

  



AGENDA ITEM: F 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Michael Parks 
City Administrator 

DATE: November 21, 2024 

PURPOSE:  To extend the engineer service to cover the raw water storage pond 
pipeline. 

BACKGROUND: Extend Hussey Gay Bell Construction Administration and 
Observation agreement to cover phase A of the Raw Water storage pone piping 
and pump station project that connects Rock Creek to the new drinking water 
treatment plant. 

RECOMMENDATION: To approve task order #39 as presented by staff. 

FUNDING: ARPA 

ATTACHMENTS: Task order #39 

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

































AGENDA ITEM: G 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Michael Parks 
City Administrator 

DATE: November 21, 2024 

PURPOSE:  Task order #40 is the engineering design service for the pretreatment of the 
raw water from Rock Creek and the raw water storage pong 

BACKGROUND: The recent pilot study for removal of certain minerals in the raw 
water storage pond has been completed and submitted to GA EPD. The pilot study 
identified Chlorine Dioxide as the preferred pretreatment oxidizer to remove certain 
minerals. Task order 40 provides engineering design and construction phase service of 
the proposed chlorine dioxide equipment to be installed at the drinking water treatment 
plant. 

RECOMMENDATION: To approve task order #40 as presented by staff. 

FUNDING: ARPA 

ATTACHMENTS: Task Order #40 

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

































 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:   ____2________ 
 
TO:   MAYOR & COUNCIL 
 
FROM:     Iris Akridge – Public Works Director   
  
DATE:   December 12, 2024 
    
PURPOSE: To consider approving 7th. Street for the 2024 LRA Grant Paving Project  
 
BACKGROUND: The City of Auburn has awarded A&S Paving, Inc. for the 2024 Local Road 
Assistance (LRA) project.  College Street was approved with a budget of $57,133.50 out of a total 
amount of $127,268.77. 

Due to the City being unable to complete the radius area within GDOT’s right-of-way, approximately 
$70,135.27 remains from this project. It has been proposed to use the additional funds for 
improvements on 7th Street near College Street. Since the contractor is already working nearby, 
there will be no additional mobilization costs. 

7th Street, which is about 485 linear feet, has all necessary details of the work to be completed 
included in the agenda packet.  A&S Paving is proposing to resurface street at $33,841.75.  
 
FUNDING: State LRA Grant     $33,841.75 
   

       
RECOMMENDATION: To approve 7th Street for the additional 2024 Local Road Assistance Grant 
paving to A&S Paving, Inc. in the amount of $33,841.75. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Cost Estimate for 7th Street Paving 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel, III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 
Joshuah Rowan 





 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:   ____3________ 
 
TO:   MAYOR & COUNCIL 
 
FROM:     Iris Akridge – Public Works Director   
  
DATE:   December 12, 2024 
    
PURPOSE: Saddle Creek Court Project Contract  
 
BACKGROUND: Sunbelt Asphalt was selected as the most qualified contractor for the Saddle 
Creek Court project. However, not included was a contract outlining the scope of work or a 
completion date. 

FUNDING:     
         
RECOMMENDATION: To approve the contract between the City of Auburn and the Scruggs 
Company, operating as Sunbelt Asphalt, for the scope of work on Saddle Creek Court. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 2024 Paving Contract Sunbelt Asphalt 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel, III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 
Joshuah Rowan 



STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
BARROW COUNTY 
 

PAVING CONTRACT 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and effective as of the ______ day of December, 2024 and between the City of 
Auburn, Georgia, herein called “Owner”, and  THE SCRUGGS COMPANY, d/b/a/ SUNBELT ASPHALT, herein 
called “Contractor”. 

 WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to 
be made and performed by the OWNER, the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees with the OWNER to commence and 
complete the construction described as follows: 

 
DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 
The Scope of Work includes, but is not limited to, furnishing of all labor, materials, and services necessary for full 
depth reclamation, road repairs and rejuvenation of existing roads within the City including excavating shoulders 
and spreading additional material into shoulder areas to bring to desired grade and paving the entire roadway 
with rejuvenated material.  The roadways to be improved within the City Limits of Auburn as described below. 
 
City Streets including: Saddlecreek Court.  All work shall be performed in conformance with Bid Documents, 
Plans, Specifications and Notice of Award attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”   
 
The Contractor is responsible for providing a flush tie-in with existing asphalt pavement.  The proper demolition 
and rejuvenation of existing pavement and other miscellaneous items as indicated on the bid documents are part 
of the Contractor’s Scope of Work.   
 
All Erosion Control measures required are the responsibility of the Contractor.  Erosion Control measures may 
include but are not limited to Silt Fence, Temporary Sediment Traps (Sd2-P), Rip Rap (St), Temporary Grassing, 
and Permanent Grassing.  The City shall be responsible for final dressing of road shoulders. 
 
All quantities and measurements are approximate.  Contractor has visited the project site and determined his 
own quantities for bidding this project.  Contractor shall be responsible for any changes in quantities.  Existing 
grades and crown of roadway shall be maintained to direct storm water towards the shoulder, ditch, and new 
curb and gutter, if any.  Traffic safety devices such as signage, barricades, etc., are the Contractor’s 
responsibility.  The protection of the public-at-large, and Contractor’s personnel is part of this contract and the 
Contractor’s sole responsibility.  The Contractor is responsible for verifying all lengths of roadway and quantities 
required to complete the asphalt work for this project.  
 

All work shall be completed no later than 30 days upon approval of contract. 
 
Additional items within Scope of Work 
 
A. A site visit has been made by Contractor and subcontractors to determine the exact nature and scope of the 

work to be done. Contractor is responsible for proper removal and disposal all demolition materials (existing 
asphalt, etc.) to a State approved disposal facility at no additional cost to the Owner.  Contractor shall tie in 
and feather new asphalt into existing asphalt so that there is a smooth transition with the new asphalt. 

 
B. If any unforeseen sub-grade conditions arise the Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner and/or 

Owner’s representative before proceeding with any work to determine the course of action.  The City of 
Auburn will provide a Geotechnical Engineer if required to qualify and quantify the areas and determine the 
method of sub-grade repair in coordination with the Owner and/or Owner’s Representative on a case by case 
basis. 

 



- 2 - 
 

C. The Contractor is required to proof roll the subgrade and GAB to demonstrate that compaction meets City of 
Auburn Standards. 

   
D. Contractor is responsible for verifying on all lengths of roadway and quantities required to complete the 

asphalt repaving work for this project. 
 
E. Existing earth subgrade if exposed shall be compacted to 95% Standard Proctor with the top twelve (12") 

inches compacted to 98% Standard Proctor Density.  All soft or yielding areas shall be excavated, refilled and 
compacted, if required. 

 
END OF DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 

 CONTRACTOR shall perform the above Scope of Work, hereinafter called the “Project”, for the lump sum, 
fixed price of SIXTY SEVEN THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED NINETY NINE NO/100 Dollars ($67,699.00) and all 
extra work in connection therewith, under the terms as stated in the Contract Bid Documents; and at his (its or 
their) own proper cost and expense to furnish all the materials, supplies, machinery, equipment, tools, 
superintendence, labor, insurance, and other accessories and services necessary to complete the said project in 
accordance with the conditions and prices stated in the Bid Proposal.   
 
 CONTRACTOR shall provide the OWNER with Certificates of Insurance, and Performance and Payment 
Bonds as required by the Contract Documents.  Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance in a sum not 
less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence including bodily and personal injury, sickness, disease or death, injury to 
or destruction of property, including loss of use resulting thereform, damage to premises, operations, products and 
contractual liability (specifically covering the indemnity outlined herein), broad-form property damage and 
underground, explosive and collapse hazard.  Contractor shall maintain Workers’ Compensation insurance with 
limits as required by the State of Georgia and Employers’ Liability limits.  The parties further acknowledge and 
agree that the funds for the Project are provided by the Georgia Department of Transportation Local Maintenance 
Improvement Grant (LMIG) program.  CONTRACTOR agrees to carry out the Work in accordance with applicable 
GDOT/LMIG guidelines and regulations. 
 
 CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the City of Auburn, Georgia, and its employees officers 
and agents from any and all damages including attorney's fees and expenses of litigation relating to any claims 
which may arise from the construction activities described herein, except only those claims related to the sole 
negligence of the City. 
 
 This is a lump sum, fixed price Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, the amount 
to be paid to Contractor by the City shall not exceed SIXTY SEVEN THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED NINETY NINE  
and NO/100 Dollars ($67,699.00) without prior written approval of the Mayor and Council of the City of Auburn.   

 
 The OWNER is subject to the requirements of the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act.  
Accordingly, the requirements of O.C.G.A. §13-10-91 and Georgia Department of Labor Rule 300-10-1-.02 are 
conditions of this Contract. Compliance with these requirements shall be attested by the execution of the Contractor 
Affidavit attached hereto, which shall become a part of the awarded contract. In the event the Contractor employs 
or contracts with any subcontractor(s) in connection with the awarded contract, the Contractor shall secure from 
such subcontractor(s) attestation of the subcontractor’s execution of the Subcontractor Affidavit attached hereto, 
which shall also become a part of the awarded contract and also a  part of the contractor/subcontractor agreement. 
Contractor shall maintain records of such attestation for inspection by The City of Auburn at any time. Contractor 
shall be required to provide copies to the City of Auburn upon request. Failure to comply with these rules will result 
in the termination of any awarded contract where it is subsequently determined that there has been a violation of 
any provision of the Act or implementing rules and regulations.  
  
 Any dispute arising under this Contract shall be heard in the Superior Court of Barrow County, Georgia, 
and the parties consent to jurisdiction and venue in that Court.  The parties waive any defense that it may have to 
lack of jurisdiction or improper venue and agree to have all disputes resolved in the Superior Court of Barrow 
County. 



- 3 - 
 

 CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to commence work under this Contract on or before a date to be specified 
in a written “Notice of Award” from OWNER and to a fully complete the Project by the date stated above.  

 The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor in current funds for the performance of the Contract, subject to 
additions and deductions, on completion of the project and final inspection of the Owner. 
 
 The City may terminate this Contract for cause upon ten (10) days prior written notice to the Contractor of 
the Contractor’s default in the performance of any term of this Contract.  Such termination shall be without prejudice 
to any of the City’s rights or remedies provided by law.  
 
 The City may terminate this Contract for its convenience upon 30 days written notice to the Contractor. In 
the event of the City’s termination of this Contract for convenience, the Contractor will be paid for those services 
actually performed. Partially completed performance of the Contract will be compensated based upon a signed 
statement of completion to be submitted by the Contractor, which shall itemize each element of performance.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to these presents have executed this Contract in two (2) counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, in the year and day first above mentioned. 
 
 
      OWNER: 
 
      CITY OF AUBURN 
 
 

By:___________________________________________(Seal) 
       Richard E. Roquemore, Mayor 
 
 

Attest:        
                Brooke Haney, City Clerk 
 
 
 
      THE SCRUGGS COMPANYd/b/a/ SUNBELT ASPHALT 
 
 
 
        By:      (Seal) 

     
 
      Print Name:__________________________________         

      Title:______________________________________ 


	CITY OF AUBURN
	November 21, 2024
	6:00 PM

	2. Public Hearing for Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate and Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate.
	WORKSHOP
	VOTING ITEMS
	12. Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate – Michael Parks
	13. Auburn Downtown Overlay District Zoning Amendment Section 17.91- Sarah McQuade
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks
	2. Millage Rate Public Hearing.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	Auburn-Barrow County 2024-5 Year History of Levy.pdf
	Sheet1

	Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024-5 Year History of Levy.pdf
	Sheet1

	3. Holiday and Events Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	5. Amend Charter Coversheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	5. Charter Amendment.Posts.rev 11 21.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF AUBURN CHARTER ORIGINALLY APPROVED MARCH 14, 1949 (GA.L 1949, P. 807) AS AMENDED,  TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

	6. Board Appointees Cover sheet (003).pdf
	FROM:   Michael Parks, City Administrator
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	AGENDA 11-21-24.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	November 21, 2024
	6:00 PM

	2. Public Hearing for Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate and Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate.
	WORKSHOP
	VOTING ITEMS
	11. Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate – Michael Parks
	12. Auburn Downtown Overlay District Zoning Amendment Section 17.91- Sarah McQuade
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks

	AGENDA 11-21-24.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	November 21, 2024
	6:00 PM

	2. Public Hearing for Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate and Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate.
	WORKSHOP
	VOTING ITEMS
	12. Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate – Michael Parks
	13. Auburn Downtown Overlay District Zoning Amendment Section 17.91- Sarah McQuade
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks

	9. video recording Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	10. Barrow Millage Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	11. Gwinett Millage Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	12. ADOD- Amendment Cover Sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	12. ADOD Chapter_17.91_ADOD_CLEAN.pdf
	Chapter 17.91 AUBURN DOWNTOWN OVERLAY DISTRICT
	17.91.010 Purpose.
	17.91.020 Applicability.
	17.91.030 Uses.
	17.91.031 Permitted principle uses.
	17.91.032 Prohibited uses.
	17.91.033 Temporary uses.

	17.91.040 Development standards.
	17.91.041 Single-family residential development standards.
	17.91.042 Non-single-family residential development standards.
	17.91.043 Non-residential development standards.
	17.91.044 Streetscape requirements.
	17.91.045 Greenspace / open space requirements.

	17.91.050 Redevelopment improvement standards.
	17.91.060 Property maintenance.
	17.91.070 Signage.
	17.91.080 Required Plans and Review.


	8. Task order 39 Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	9. task 40 Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	3. Holiday and Events Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	December 12, 2024 Business Meeting Agenda.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	December 12, 2024
	6:00 PM

	INVOCATION
	PLEDGE
	NEW BUSINESS
	VOTING ITEMS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks

	November 14 2024 Council Business Meeting Minutes.pdf
	MAYOR
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	CITY COUNCIL
	Council Reports and Announcements

	PUBLIC HEARING
	Item 1: Auburn-Barrow County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate

	PUBLIC HEARING
	Item 1: Auburn-Gwinnett County 2024 Property Tax/Millage Rate

	PUBLIC HEARING
	Item 2: Downtown Overlay District Zoning Amendment Section 17.91
	Second: By Council Member Bradley.


	LRA Seventh Street.pdf
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	Michael E. Parks


	3. Saddle Creek Court Contract Approval.pdf
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	Michael E. Parks


	November 21, 2024 Council Workshop Minutes.pdf
	Item 1: Council Reports and Announcements

	December 12, 2024 Business Meeting Agenda.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	December 12, 2024
	6:00 PM

	INVOCATION
	PLEDGE
	NEW BUSINESS
	VOTING ITEMS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks




